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Dear Mr Sild
 
Arrangements for Handling Heritage Applications Direction 2015

14 & 15 GREAT JAMES STREET LONDON WC1N 3DP
Application No 2019/4344/L
 
Thank you for your letter of 2 September 2019 regarding the above application for listed building consent. 

The application relates to two grade II* listed former terrace houses dating from the early 18th century.  Despite numerous past alterations, many of the rooms within these former houses retain their original proportions and floorplans, and these elements are considered to contribute to their heritage significance.

The proposals are for conversion and extension of the buildings to provide office use, including the reinstatement of lateral connections between the two former houses and works to No. 15 comprising new fenestration to the front elevation, new services, internal alterations, new lift and replacement rear extension.

In considering these proposals, Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) set out the obligation on local planning authorities to pay special regard to safeguarding the special interest of listed buildings and their settings.   The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also guides our decision making on how to safeguard the historic environment in planning decisions.   Paragraph 193 states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. Paragraph 194 states that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset should require clear and convincing justification. 

As discussed during a site meeting on 17th September, we discussed amendments to the proposals relating to No. 15, which are sought in order to safeguard the special interest of the building and to ensure that the proposed new works are historically accurate.  Those amendments include:

· Revising the proposed new fenestration to reflect the existing window arrangement at No.31.  It is understood that the windows at No. 31 have been recently installed and are historically accurate.  This includes 9 over 6 sashes at first floor level;
· Reinstatement of the original ceiling at third floor level at No. 15.  The removal of the existing ceiling appears to have taken place without the benefit of listing building consent.  In our view, the ceiling plays an important role in defining the modest proportions of these top floor spaces and its removal is considered to cause harm to the significance of the building.
· Removing the proposed lift from the historic floorplan of the building.  Despite the historic building having been subject to numerous alterations, much of the original floorplan is retained.  The proposed lift is considered to erode that floorplan and to cause a high degree of harm to the significance of the building.  We would instead recommend reconsideration of the proposed layout in order to accommodate the lift within the proposed rear extension.

We look forward to receiving amended proposals in due course.  If such proposals are not received, we would not be minded to recommend authorisation of this application due to the extent of harm proposed to the historic building at No. 15.


This response relates to historic building matters only. If the proposals meet the Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service’s published consultation criteria we recommend that you seek their view as specialist archaeological advisor to the local planning authority.

The full GLAAS consultation criteria are on our webpage at the following link:

https://www.historicengland.org.uk/services-skills/our-planning-services/greater-london-archaeology-advisory-service/our-advice/
	
Yours sincerely

Claire Brady
Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas
E-mail: claire.brady@HistoricEngland.org.uk
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